
           

* * * * PUBLIC NOTICE * * * *

NOTICE OF A CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING
A WORKSHOP SESSION

OF THE CITY OF CORINTH
Thursday, April 2, 2020, 5:45 P.M.

CITY HALL - 3300 CORINTH PARKWAY

Pursuant to Section 551.127, Texas Government Code, one or more Councilmembers or employees may attend this
meeting remotely using videoconferencing technology. The videoconferencing technology can be accessed

at  http://meetings.cityofcorinth.com.
 The video and audio feed of the videoconferencing equipment can be viewed and heard by the public at the address

posted above as the location of the meeting.
  

           

CALL TO ORDER:
 

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA
 

1. Receive a presentation and hold a discussion on amendments to the City's Noise Nuisance standards.
 

2. Provide an update and hold a discussion on the Coronavirus (COVID-19) in regard to City operations
and practices.

  

 

3. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed
session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.

  

 

ADJOURN WORKSHOP SESSION
 

*NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Regular Session of the Corinth City Council to be held at Corinth City Hall
located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The agenda is as follows:
 

CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE:
"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".
 

CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.
Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.
 

1. Consider and act on the minutes from February 20, 2020 Workshop Session.

http://meetings.cityofcorinth.com/


 

2. Consider and act on the minutes from February 20, 2020 Regular Session.
 

CITIZENS  COMMENTS
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will be
limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and may
be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if you
desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed to the
Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of the City
of Corinth.
 

PUBLIC HEARING
 

3. Conduct a public hearing, consider testimony, and act upon an ordinance amending the zoning
classification from  C-2, Commercial to PD, Planned Development with a base district of C-2,
Commercial on an approximate 7.12 acre tract of land legally described as Block 1, Lots 6-A1, 6-B1, and
6-C1 of the Pecan Creek Subdivision, and is situated in the William Garrison Survey, Abstract 1545
within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas and is more commonly known as 5150 S I-35E,
Corinth, TX.( Enterprise PD Zoning) 

Staff Presentation
Applicant Presentation
Public Hearing
Staff Response
Take Action

 

4. Conduct a public hearing to consider testimony and take action on an amendment and possible restatement
to the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan “City of Corinth 2010 Comprehensive Plan” adopted by
Ordinance No. 10-05-06-12 by adopting an ordinance approving a new Comprehensive Master Plan
entitled “Envision Corinth, 2040 Comprehensive Plan.” (Comprehensive Plan)
THE PUBLIC HEARING LISTED ABOVE WILL NOT BE HELD. THE ITEM IS INCLUDED ON
THE AGENDA BECAUSE NOTICES WERE POSTED IN THE CITY'S NEWSPAPER OF RECORD,
THE DENTON RECORD CHRONICLE. THE PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE RE-NOTICED ONCE
SOCIAL GATHERING RESTRICTIONS ARE LIFTED.

 

BUSINESS AGENDA
 

5. Consider and act on a Resolution ordering the General election scheduled for May 2, 2020 be
postponed until Tuesday, November 3, 2020; making findings related thereto, and providing an effective
date.

 

6. Consider and act on an Ordinance ordering a Joint Special Election scheduled for May 2,
2020 be postponed until Tuesday, November 3, 2020.

 

7. Consider and act on an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas and the Temporary
Board of Directors of the Proposed City of Corinth Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency Medical
Services District postponing the Joint Special Election until Tuesday, November 3, 2020.

 

8. Consider and take appropriate action on an Ordinance declaring a local state of disaster for public health



8. Consider and take appropriate action on an Ordinance declaring a local state of disaster for public health
emergency for the City of Corinth; providing Orders related thereto; providing a penalty; and providing
an effective date.

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in accordance
with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that an item be
added as a business item to any future agenda.
 

CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of the
above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

Section 551.071.  (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body
under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter
551.
 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third
person.
 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or
near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.
 

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on
any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.
 
RECONVENE  IN  OPEN  SESSION  TO  TAKE  ACTION, IF NECESSARY,  ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS.
 

ADJOURN:
 

Posted this 27th day of March, 2020 at 11:30 a.m. on the bulletin board at Corinth City Hall.

________________________________
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    1.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 04/02/2020  
Title: Noise standard amendments
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Liebman,

Director 
Submitted By: Ben Rodriguez, Manager

Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: N/A
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive Government

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a presentation and hold a discussion on amendments to the City's Noise Nuisance standards.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
At the City Council meeting on January 23, 2020 Council directed staff to propose amendments to the City's noise
nuisance standards to make them enforcable. The City's current noise nuisance standards are very broad and open to
intrepretation by language that states that noise nusiances are those that "disturb persons with ordinary sensibilities."
As currently written, the regulations make it difficult for City staff to enforce outside of asking residents or
business to keep the noise down. 

Staff will have a presentation during the worksession to propose an amendment which sets measurable decimal
limits on the amout of noise that may leave a property. This will provide staff with an enforcable metric in which to
regulate noise emissions throughout the community. 

RECOMMENDATION
N/A



   
    CONSENT ITEM    1.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 04/02/2020  
Title: February 20, 2020 Workshop Session
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on the minutes from February 20, 2020 Workshop Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the February 20, 2020 Workshop Session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the February 20, 2020 Workshop Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 
 
On this the 20th day of February 2020 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Workshop Session 
at the Corinth City Hall at 5:45 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, 
time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Mayor Heidemann 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member  
Lowell Johnson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Staff Members Present 

Bob Hart, City Manager 
Kim Pence, City Secretary 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 
Chris Rodriguez, Assistant Finance Director 
Patricia Adams, Messer, Fort & McDonald 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
Michael Ross, Fire Chief 
Jason Alexander, Corinth Economic Development Corporation Director 
Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director 
Cleve Joiner, Building Official 
Brenton Copeland, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
Angie Watson, Utility Billing Supervisor 
 
Others Present: 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:45 p.m.  
 

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 

1. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and give staff direction on the Water and Wastewater 

Rates. 

 

Bob Hart, City Manager – We want to talk about the water/wastewater system. In the past we 
have always had a consultant present, this year we sent Lee Ann and Chris to an American Water 

Works class on how to present. You are going to see quality work for a fraction of the cost.  
 



 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

I will be as brief as possible. We will cover the following items: 

 

 
 

The AWWA publishes the State of the Water Industry Report and provided the top issues 
everyone is dealing with and are going on nationwide, in order of priority. We will touch on 

some of these and how we are dealing with them.  
 

 
 
This slide was intriguing. We hear folks say all the time that their water usage is increasing at a 
higher rate that their garbage and other utilities. AWWA tracked the average costs. Water was 

increasing but found when cities were developing and putting in their infrastructure, they were 
getting grants or developers would pay for some of it. Now with the aging cities, the city is 

having to deal with the infrastructure cost.  
 
 



 
 

 
 

A main issue cities are facing is drought and water shortages. We put this up here because these 
are the items the AWWA says utilities should strive for to deal with it. We already do three of 
the four. The last one, utilities are creating two rate tiers, one for normal conditions and one for 

drought/shortages. We do not plan to do this.  
 

 
We talked with council last year and there was a lot of discussion about affordability, primarily 
within the senior citizen population. We had some suggestions to see if there were any 

affordability programs we could implement or what we could do to mitigate it. We researched 
affordability within the water system and how to measure it. We found an index to measure. 



 
 

 
 

When we applied the affordability test to the community, its based on the median household 
income, applying 4%, so the monthly bill is $332. Basically any utility above $332 means the 
community is having a problem baying their utility bills. For us, the monthly combined rate is 

$108.00. It is based on 8,882 gallons of water and 5,023 gallons of wastewater. Looking at the 
overall community, we fall well below what our community can afford.  

 

 
When looking at affordability based on distribution of household income, we have roughly 10% 

of our community that falls below the range of affordability. Those are the households with an 
income of less than $32,000 per year. That represents about 800 households, it could be 
apartments. It is hard to say that we have an affordability issue but we do have some that when 

you do the basic test, they do seem to fall below that ratio.  



 
 

 
 

Now that we know this exists, what happens. It is difficult to identify the people, what 
qualification and parameters. You can look at how to implement such as children who qualify for 
low cost lunches, etc. We noticed utility-wide that you must have this test to start looking at 

affordability each year because demographics change. You always want to look at your 
community to make sure you’re not putting to stress by charging too much for you water and 

wastewater. We will also review our late payments and disconnection fees. We will review those 
in April and discuss.  
 

 
 
 

We feel we have a four-prong approach to water conservation as outlined below. 



 
 

 
 

These are the four months when we have the most usage. The red line represents our average day 
consumption throughout the year. We increase from 3 – 7 mgd per day in the summer.  
 

Mayor Heidemann – Is that just if we go over in one month, that we will get an increase or is it 
over several months? 

 

 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

That is our next slide. We cannot go over it unless we request it. Once we begin to reach the 
level, Cody will start using our storage capacity. If we have to request additional water, even 

once, it automatically increases permanently. 



 
 

 
 

Looking at our water conservation program, we haven’t had a lot of participation and from a 
communications standpoint we will be promoting it this year. We budget $25,000 per year. 
 

Mayor Heidemann – I was a recipient and if you call Upper Trinity, they will come out free of 
charge and evaluate. It is up to you whether you take advantage or not.  

 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

The water my yard program? We have advertised it and when we have spoken with Upper 

Trinity, our residents utilize that program.  
 

 
 
One of the benefits of us doing the rate study internally is getting into the raw data. When a 

consultant does it, you only see the nice polished report on the end. Our top consumption 
accounts. IRR is irrigation accounts, COM is commercial accounts, MF is multi- family accounts. 
The chart shows an average month and peak month usage, with the peak months in the summer. 

The majority of the accounts are irrigation accounts, which are not charged sewer. 
 

 



 
 

 
 

One way to deal with the consumption is to create a key account water conservation program. 
We are looking at implementing a program where we reach out to customers on hot days and 
have them shut off their watering for that day which will decrease our load and help us stay 

below 7.5mgd. It will be a partnership between Public Works and Utility Billing.  
 

 
Before we go into rates, we have to determine how much money we will need over the next year 



 
 

to three years.  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

When we analyze our operating budget, in total we have about $12.5 that we need to recover for 
both utilities. Water/wastewater purchase costs are about 56-57% of the total amount of cost for 

the utility system. Your debt is at 10, so roughly 70% is fixed. The council has control of about 
30% of the expenditures for the water and wastewater system.  

 

 
 

We pay Upper Trinity about $7 million. Projecting out, we were very conservative; we did about 
2 ½% for each utility from 2021 to 2024. As you can see, the costs increase each year.  
 

 
When we did the asset management plan last year the recommendation was that we put $3.5 
million aside each year for water and $1.17 aside for wastewater. AWWA recommends a 

minimum of $1.9 million, obviously we cannot afford either one of those. We would have to 
almost double our rates in order to meet either one of those amounts. Our current plan is to put 

$250,000 in water and $50,000 into wastewater. We will have to review these each year.  
 

 Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – How do we pick our depreciation rate? 

  
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

It is based on the assets that we currently have on the system, accounting base. Some of these 



 
 

assets could be fully depreciated so we are not carrying any depreciated value on our books. 
Right now, we have more assets in water but the majority of assets in the wastewater system are 

fully depreciated. That stands in place as we will have some water lines we will have to replace 
in the coming years. 

Bob Hart, City Manager – Your real number is what the asset management line is. 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

This is ideal, maybe not real world. The AWWA tries to get a number people can actually 

quantify and may be attainable so that is why the best practice is to do annual depreciation. 
Unfortunately, that is a significant amount. We will keep evaluating this year and see how much 

we can put aside.  
 

 
 
Last year we created the rate stabilization fund. It was designed for when we have very hot years 
and that we over-recover in revenues that any excess we put into this fund, on the years we are 

under, it helps us stabilize the fund so we do not have to adjust rates. We did not put any funds in 
for this year. We will continue to analyze it yearly.  

 

 



 
 

In factoring debt, we factor our outstanding debt and debt service payments. We also look at 
future projects requiring funding. We review the capacity we have within our current structure 

without raising rates. When we look at our debt service, we do not have the capacity to issue 
anymore debt without raising rates until 2027. At that point we will only have about $3.76 

million on the water side. That doesn’t mean as a council you cannot elect to issue debt, that is 
within your purview, keep in mind that if we do issue debt, we will have to raise the rates. 
 

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – Is the water tower already taken care of? 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 
Yes 
 

 
On the wastewater side it is the same. Any debt issuance before 2027 will have an impact on the 
rate. 

 

 
We look at what capital improvement projects that might be on the horizon that will affect the 

rates. We discussed with the city manager and city engineer to look at the projects. These are the 
TOD and a lot of this is design. 

 



 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager – This is the wastewater component, streets are separate.  

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

Future projects total at approximately $1.9 million. The amounts seem nominal, we felt we could 

use it by utilizing some fund balance in the water/wastewater fund and to not issue debt. We 
could possibly use impact fees as well to pay for some of the projects. 

 

 Tina Henderson, Council Member – How are the numbers the same? 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager – Those are engineering estimates that George generated. When you 

are building the street, you include the water and wastewater components. I bet he put in the total 
and divided it by two. The bid prices would be different. 

 

  
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

Our consultants haven’t presented our customer classes and during peak times, who is putting the 
most stress on our systems. When you compare resident to senior classes, seniors use more 
during the peak time but we bill less 5,000 gallons. The biggest demand is fire hydrant, this is 

new development.  
 

Mayor Heidemann – What is wholesale? 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

These are the city accounts. In 2008-2009, the council passed an ordinance stating city accounts 
would not be billed the same as the other classes. This is mostly to water the fields, 
neighborhood parks for irrigation. Buildings are still billed under commercial class. 

 
Mayor Heidemann – How about the HOA’s and POA’s? 

 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

It is billed under irrigation, if they have an irrigation meter.  



 
 

 
Now we look at the rate structure.  

 

 
The data from GIS shows in the next five years, the senior group will increase by 30% again.  

 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – Will these be new users or just aging into that category? 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

Aging into that category. New users would be somewhere between 25-30%. 

 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – How many is that? It looks like we are about 500 residential 
accounts from the hot summer busting the 7.5 million gallons. On your peak day, if you divide 

that by 5,600, about 558 gallons per day and multiply that by 500, that is 558,000 gallons. If I 
remember, the other graph, we are about a half a million gallons of being in trouble and that 

assumes no commercial development. 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

We are right at 500,000. This is one of the reasons it is important that we reach out to the 
irrigation customers. Their peak is five to seven hundred thousand gallons during that time. If we 

can get them to shut it off to zero on those days it will provide us some of that capacity. If we 



 
 

grow, we get more residential and commercial accounts, it is inevitable that we will have to 
increase that threshold. 

 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – How much new storage capacity, if any, will we get in the water 

tank? 
 

 Cody Collier, Public Works Director – The new tank is a million gallons. 

 
 Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – 8.5 buys us what, a few days in the really hot sun? or a day?  

 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director – It depends on the timespan like Lee Ann was talking 
earlier. If I can span it in and actually fill my tanks and use some of the previous days water to 

get the tanks up, use that water to carry me over to the next day. If you run into five days to a 
week, I will run out of time. It is a matter if we hit 7.5, where we tier up to the next level. 

 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – Maybe you could buy us a week? 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 
Annual volume, in five years, you can tell where we had wet years and very dry year. This past 

year, our volume was 813 million gallons so as we talked in the investment committee meeting 
earlier this morning, our revenues were down because the volume was down. We had 101.7 
million below the annual average, right at a 12.5% decrease. One significant thing is that we 

have not experienced growth, as you will see in the wastewater graph. Our growth in the amount 
of customers has been slow. Your usage has stayed flat or gone down. Our expenditures continue 

to rise. It is specific to the Upper Trinity charges, that since 2014, those expenditures have 
increased by a million. This is why we had a rate increase in 2018 and we will probably have to 
do another in the next few years, unless we have some growth in there. 

 
Scott Garber, Council Member -  Seems to me that 2018-2019 we talked diligently about 

having that rate passed through so that if Upper Trinity doubles their cost, our customers can see 
this is variable cost associated with purchasing the water as opposed to Corinth just needs to 
raise water rates. We have done that, correct? 

 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

Yes, it was effective in 2018, it was the first year that we split it out between Upper Trinity and 
the city cost. The way the consultant did the distribution, it wasn’t lined up with our actual 
revenues so we are going to fix that, going into next year, absolutely. You will be able to see the 

rate and that is the amount associated with Upper Trinity. Right now, they are inverted a little bit.  

Scott Garber, Council Member - If Upper Trinity increased 10%, since we talked about this in 
2017. My assumption is that the 10% pass through directly to our customers even in years like 

2019 when we chose not to increase rates. 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

Correct and that is the beauty of the decision council made about splitting those. It is on the 
water bills and you would be able to see how much is the city’s. Cody and staff do a good job of 

keeping our expenditures flat. We don’t increase them if you look year to year. The increase in 



 
 

the budget is almost entirely to Upper Trinity and to the City of Denton on the wastewater 
contract.  

Lowell Johnson, Council Member – If our issue is with these irrigation meters, how many do 
we have? 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director –

187 

Lowell Johnson, Council Member – Cody, is there a way that if we are modeling this after 
electric and gas usage, can we apply a meter that has a ground out feature? One that we can 
control how much water they can get through the system we already have? 

Cody Collier, Public Works Director – Indirectly, yes. They have a remote meter. It would 
basically take the system we have now, set a long limit on it, like the customer could do. When 
they hit a certain threshold, it would send an email to me and I could shut it off. 

Lowell Johnson, Council Member – If we went to a system like that and prebilled or offered to 

these irrigation customers, right now they use the water, they pay, we’re a month behind. For the 
irrigation meters, what if we went in and sold the contract water rate monthly. They can decide 
how much water they want to buy and we will set the max rate, so that we have recovered that 

money before we have ever gotten there with it. They don’t get a refund, they want to buy 300,00 
gallons for irrigation, they buy it up front, we bill them, it’s paid, you adjust the meter and it is 

water, we can control the half million gallons. It will force compliance with xeroscape and things 
like that. This technology is used in electric and gas for years.  

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director –

We discussed this, the other caveat is on the electric side, my experience is in Denton, like with 

UNT, Peterbilt, the key accounts, they do have a contracted amount. As long as they stay below 
the contracted amount, the rate doesn’t increase. It is their incentive to stay within the contracted 

amount. 

Lowell Johnson, Council Member – But you are still billing a month behind in that situation.  
 



 
 

 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

For our base water rate, we recommend no changes.  

 

 

 
Looking at our current rates, it complicated the structure, so we kept the 0-5,000 at $2.15. Not a 

big change in the rates, a small savings in residential. For commercial, we are proposing to 
equalize this between the classes so the cost is the same regardless of residential or commercial. 

The rates are consistent with other cities. We increased the 50,000 rate to increase it to 
conservation awareness. For commercial, it includes multi- family, builder class, irrigation 
meters. We are proposing a rate tier for irrigation and it is similar to other cities rates. 

 

Scott Garber, Council Member – Two recommendations, any rate that is down from current, 
$6.24 to $6.15, $9.21 to $9.15, I am concerned, looking at all the information we are looking at, 
we have already paid the communication price for those increases and we have worked through 

substantial hurdles to get that, I hate to remove that and in two years from now we need to 



 
 

increase them. Maybe we could consider keeping the rates the same with the exception of the 
$3.15, how we lumped everybody in, so up to 5,000 gallons, they are all at $2.15, I like that. The 

other thing I would consider on the senior rate, Corinth cares for their seniors and we have a 
number of them. We want the seniors to be able to have affordability of water. What I am not 

super happy about is to subsidize a huge increase in their watering, more than a normal citizen 
because they are getting the first 5,000 for free. Maybe, to explore, set a threshold to where if a 
senior is over an amount, then we are billing them for the first 5,000. That keeps our senior 

citizen rate viable into the future and that keeps it focused on the people that are truly conserving 
and need the cost savings.  

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director –

We can do that, at the council’s discretion, as far as the rates. The reason I want to make it even 
and easier to tell was the primary but the secondary is that in a little bit we are going to get to the 
wastewater rates and they are not as pretty. The thought is, these were cents. If we get a little bit 

on this side, it may make the other side less painful.   

 

 
 
We did a survey of other cities, Upper Trinity customers and those who are not. By far, the 
utility industry is getting away from senior discounts because of the rising cost of water. 

 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member - Do they ever consider doing budget billing? In December 

when it is $100 and in July it is $350, if it is spread out it may not be as much of a burden.  

 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

Angie, is our system sophisticated enough to handle budget billing? 
 
Angie Watson, Utility Billing Supervisor – I believe it will be with the next upgrade. 

 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member – For those who know what their water bill will be. 

 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member – I have a problem with the equity of the rates. At 50,000 
for the residential rates, we are proposing $12.15, the commercial rate, they are paying less than 



 
 

half of that for the same 50,000 gallons. If water is water, where is the equity in that? Why don’t 
we start at $12.15 at the 50,000 gallon level for your commercial, because that is what our 

residential customers are paying.  

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – You would have to pull out multi-family if you did that. 

Lowell Johnson, Council Member – Multi-family shows up in commercial. 

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – That is what I mean, multi- family is housing. We don’t need to 
pass through to individuals. People who live in apartments use less money per capita than those 

who live in homes by a big margin. 

Lowell Johnson, Council Member – How are they billed? They are billed on a master meter, 
aren’t they? They have a private company that comes in and determines the rates for their 

apartment. 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

When you look at your multi- family, their average monthly is 78,000 gallons. Their peak is 91, 

so when you look at the demand, the multi-family compared to residential account, compared to 
commercial, they are not using a greater amount or a demand on the system. 

Scott Garber, Council Member – When an apartment complex is metered on a master meter, 
they are going to be on the $12 per thousand bracket, so if an individual only uses 400 gallons, 

they are billed at the $12 and not at the $2.15. To Lowell’s point, it almost seems like there needs 
to be another tier added to the residential from 50-150 thousand and at that point have one rate 

structure so that if commercial is using up to 100,000 instead of $7.15 per thousand, that would 
be at $12.15 per thousand. 

Bob Hart, City Manager – We will show you our comparison with other cities in a minute.  

 

 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director –



 
 

The rate structures are below along with the revenue requirement.  

 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 

For wastewater we will follow the same process.  
 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 

 

Kelly Pickens, Council Member – All the other rates are current so we are comparing their 
current rates to our projected rates. 



 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 
Correct 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – How many senior accounts are there? 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director –

1,160 on the water side.  

Lowell Johnson, Council Member – Total CIP or total debt service we are working to roll into 
our base rate, we’ve got it there because if we start messing with conservation, if we don’t have 
100% of our debt service in the base rate, conservation programs will cause us problems with our 

debt services. We have to be careful with that and be sure we can cover, in our base rate, 100% 
of our debt service.  

 
Bob Hart, City Manager – When you look at the schedule we have laid out, this is on here for 
discussion for the next several weeks. 

 
Scott Garber, Council Member – This has been brought up a couple of times, can we cap the 

senior ad valorem tax rate? Can we include that while we are talking about this at the exact same 
time? 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager – We can pull that together and I think that is one you want to talk 
about philosophically.  

 
Scott Garber, Council Member – Philosophically but I want it to be fresh on our minds that we 
are doing 5,000 gallons per month for seniors. 

 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member – I like Scott’s idea, if they see 10,000, then they don’t get the 

first 5,000 for free. 
 
Scott Garber, Council Member – The senior rate is great, it is costing those of us who aren’t 

seniors $30/month extra, apparently, which I think most people are okay with. I think what most 
people wouldn’t be okay with is giving a senior that is using 100,000 gallons an extra free 5,000. 

It is like capping a senior’s tax rate when they live in a $10 million home, they don’t need the 
discount. 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

What I am hearing is, look to see what threshold, either 15,000 gallons or 20,000 gallons and 

come up with how that affects. 
 
Scott Garber, Council Member – Yes, also I found it interesting that our seniors are third or 

fourth on the list that are pressuring us into 7.5 million gallons. I think they were fourth. I almost 
wonder if the subsidy we are offering isn’t encouraging that difference. 

 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member – Are we going to continue the winter averaging? Would it 
be better to cap winter usage at a certain level instead or just change the 25,000 cap? Why 

wouldn’t we just want to cap the winter averaging rate? 
 



 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director –

It is based on usage. Currently the average for sewer for residential is 5,023 gallons so if you do 

away with sewer averaging, the average for the average resident is 8,882, so you would have the 

additional 3,000 gallons that would be charged.  
 

Scott Garber, Council Member – You could cap it at the average water consumption rate. As 
somebody who owns a pool, I don’t see 8,800 gallons. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

We will look, on the sewer side, not sewer averaging. On the water side, looking at changing for 

seniors who water more than an average, look at budget billing. 
 

Lowell Johnson, Council Member – I would also like you to look at pushing it all to one rate 
table.  
 

Kelly Pickens, Council Member – As far as what we are projecting for the development, with 
the meeting we had earlier this week, an increase in multi- family, what does that mean to our 

water?  
 
Bob Hart, City Manager – You will have your increase but where you gain is if you don’t have 

your summer peaking. 
 

Kelly Pickens, Council Member – As far as usage, that will put more strain on it. 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

Multi-family puts the least amount of strain on any of the classes. They do have a high monthly 
average of 78 but as far as peaking is concerned, they stay pretty consistent all year.  

 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – We really just have a summer watering problem, if we solve 
that, we are decades away from a problem.  

 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member – Kensington had the largest consumption in January. 

 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – Do our codes require drip irrigation now? 
 

Cleve Joiner, Building Official – Yes 

 

Scott Garber, Council Member – The incentives for conservation, once we adjust the rates, 
perhaps we can sweeten the deal. From personal experience, moving to a rachio system, saved us 
a tremendous amount of water. It may be worth it for Corinth down the road to subsidize 90% or 

require smart meters in new developments. All of our rebated items should be required for new 
construction. 

 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – What’s the price range of new homes? 
 

Cleve Joiner, Building Official – We have three subdivisions, one starts at $480,000, another at 
$250,000 and the other at $195,000. 



 
 

 

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – Are the developers putting in sprinklers? 

Cleve Joiner, Building Official – They are installing the drip systems. It isn’t in the code, they 
are doing in on their own as a conservation measure.  

 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member – How does that work for existing residents who want to 
install one? 

 
Cleve Joiner, Building Official – They are held accountable by the TCEQ guidelines, so they 

have to follow those requirements. 
 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member – The AMI meters and detecting leaks, what do we have for 

our water lines that run under our streets? Is there a detection system for that? 
 

Cody Collier, Public Works Director – When the water main breaks, it will surface almost 
instantly on the street.  
 

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – Are we going to break out multi-family homes? Or am I 
misunderstanding how those are metered? 

 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

Currently we have them under commercial. 

 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – If we are going to do the rate structure more aggressively, can 

we also look at that? 
 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member – They are all on master meters, commercial meters, so how 

are you going to do that? Their water services are privatized. You have a private company that 
reads and measures. 

 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – That is why I am asking. If the water costs $12 to get through 
the master meter, they are going to pass that through to an individual at $12. That isn’t equitable 

because they are using less water than if you live in a single-family home. A multi- family 
building should have a different rate. The rate structure shouldn’t kick up. It is not the same as 

Co-Serv watering their grass in August, if the residents are showering. They are not watering 
anything. 
 

Lowell Johnson, Council Member – If we go back to Kensington, if they are filling up their 
pool in January, that 180,000 gallons they used. If that comes through the commercial meter and 

the residents are going to benefit from it, I can’t go swim there, why should I have to pay for it? 
 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – I think you design the cutoff so that you get to that, I am saying 

don’t start 12,000 gallons at $12. 
 

Lowell Johnson, Council Member – If you look at what we are talking about, we are talking 
about adjusting that $12 to where it is more equitable on your rate structure. 
 



 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager – I understand the question and it is to get the cost equivalent back to 
back to a per unit basis.  

 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – That is all I am trying to do, I am not trying to subsidize their 

swimming pool. 
 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member – They make money off of their water. There is a factor in 

how much they charge their residents that goes back to that business. Once it hits that meter, it 
would be like you charging each one of your family members for a different amount of water.  

 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – I know we can’t control if they want to profiteer off of it but I 
would rather be charging them a dollar or two extra of an equivalent rate than $12.00. 

 
Scott Garber, Council Member – Can you please also reach out to the apartments to see how 

they bill? They may bill a flat rate and the rest is fixed with the rent. 
  
Kelly Pickens, Council Member – Is there just one meter? Is there a meter for the residents? 

 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

Kensington has one meter for the apartment and a second for irrigation.  
 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member – The apartment meter goes for their office, their pool, 

laundry. The amenities are not separately metered than the units. 
 

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem – They separate it out on their end.  
 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member – How many people live there for that much usage? 

 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member – About five hundred.  

 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director – 

We will do some research. I know there are some cities that do have a separate tier for multi-

family. 
 

Mayor Heidemann came out of Closed Session as announced after the regular meeting and 

convened back into Workshop Session at 7:53 p.m. 

 

2. Receive a Presentation and hold a discussion regarding the Lake Cities Fire 

Department/Joint Lake Cities Council Meeting. 

Bob Hart, City Manager – We are finalizing the agenda on that for Monday. We will cover a 
lot of what we have covered previously. We have the item on the agenda to talk about the fire 
contract. Michael has been to the other three cities and given them the presentation on the fire 
study and on the contract. You all have seen both presentations. We will give an abbreviated 

version of that on March 3rd. Lee Ann, Michael and I will present it. Hopefully we will have 
some good conversation, discussing many of our programs. 

 



 
 

3. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of 

closed session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below. 

 
Tina Henderson, Council Member – On the interlocal agreement, Chief Garner, why are we 

selling the motorcycles? 
 

Jerry Garner, Police Chief – They have been sitting in the garage, unused for a couple of 

years. We do not have a traffic team. We have all our officers on patrol to maintain our 
deployment on the street. If we ever restored a motorcycle program, these bikes are five years 

old, we would not want to use these. We have nobody qualified to work on a motorcycle except 
a sergeant who works nights. If we were able to restore a traffic unit, we will have our officers 
work out of cars. Motorcycles are good but limited with what they can do, you can do more 

with a car.  
  

Kelly Pickens, Council Member – What is the value of them? 
 

Tina Henderson, Council Member – We are selling them for $9,700. The value with that low 

mileage is around $11,375, third party $15, 270. These have really low mileage. Why are we 
selling them so cheap? 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 

– We had them inspected to be sure they were alright. The value they came back at was $9,700. 
 

Kelly Pickens, Council Member – What do we have valued in them as far as lights and stuff? 
Do we have a lot of improvements on them? 

 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 

– No and the thought is that if we are not going to use them and if they do put it up in two years 

we are going to have to buy new bikes, sell them now while they still have value.  

Mayor Heidemann recessed into executive session at 8:01 p.m. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters 

regarding any of the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 

of the Texas Government Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or 
contemplated litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney 
to the government body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar 
of Texas clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings Act.  

 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberat ion 

in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in 
negotiations with a third person. 



 
 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 
discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against 

an officer or employee. 
 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have 
locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the 

governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of 
a financial or other incentive to a business prospect. 

 
a. Discuss potential Economic Development incentives for businesses seeking to locate in 

Corinth and supporting the TOD. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 

ITEMS. 

There was no action taken from Closed Session.  

 

ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 9:11 p.m. 

 

AYES: All 
 

Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of    , 2020.  

 
 

       
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 



   
    CONSENT ITEM    2.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 04/02/2020  
Title: February 20, 2020 Regular Session
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on the minutes from February 20, 2020 Regular Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the February 20, 2020 Workshop Session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the February 20, 2020 Regular Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 
 
On this the 20th day of February 2020 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Regular Session 
at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, 
time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Mayor Heidemann  
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro Tem, Arrived at 7:30 p.m. 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Members Absent: 
None 
 
Staff Members Present 

Bob Hart, City Manager 
Kim Pence, City Secretary 
Jerry Garner, Chief of Police 
Michael Ross, Fire Chief 
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director 
Cleve Joiner, Building Official 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Brenton Copeland, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 7:40 p.m. Councilmember Jeff Dooley, Market Place 
Chaplains delivered the Invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one 

motion. Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item 

will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 
1. Consider and act on approval of an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Missouri City for cooperative 

purchasing. 
 

2. Consider and act on a Resolution reviewing and approving the Technology Services Security Policy 
for the City of Corinth; and providing an effective date. 

 

3. Consider approval of the DataProse contract renewal and expenditures for bill processing, postage and 
inserts. 

 

4. Consider and act on a Resolution reviewing and approving the Incident Response Policy and Plan for 
the City of Corinth and Providing an Effective Date. 



 
 

MOTION made by Councilmember Henderson to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Seconded 
by Councilmember Garber 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS: 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

There were no Citizens Comments made. 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
5. Consider authorzing the city manager to execute a memorandum of agreement between the City of 

Corinth and the Dallas Off-Road Bicycle Association (DORBA), for the use and maintenance of 
Corinth trails. 

 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director - Corinth staff and the Dallas Off-Road Bicycle Association 
(DORBA) have been collaborating for a mutually beneficial agreement for trails use and maintenance.  
DORBA is well established in the North Texas and have several use agreements with cities across the 
region.  DORBA asks for permission to use the trails for recreational purposes which conform to Corinth's 
trails requirements including: no motorized vehicles, no use days due to rain or dangerous conditions, and 
our standard park hours. In return, DORBA will provide a Corinth citizen interested in becoming the "Trail 
Steward" and provide all maintenance for the trial system.   
 
The Trail Steward will provide regular inspections of the trail, post signs indicating whether the trails are 
open or closed, and work with Corinth staff regarding maintenance tasks. DORBA will provide all volunteer 
labor, tools, equipment and funds to perform any required maintenance activities, and coordinate with 
Corinth prior to performing these duties and for final inspection for acceptance from Corinth. All 
improvements or structures created by DORBA will be done through a permit/ inspection process and will 
become Corinth property upon completion. 
 
Corinth Parks and Recreation Board members met with DORBA, discussed intent, and reviewed DORBA's 
contract agreement.  The Board is in favor of entering into an agreement with DORBA and entering into a 
partnership.     
 
Councilmember Garber – this will still allow us the ability to maintain our own trails in the event of 
whatever? 
 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director – yes, the only thing DORBA has asked the City is if we are going 
to post an event that will occupy the trail system, we schedule with them so they can have it on their 
calendar.  



 
 

Councilmember Garber – we discussed adding the trail component to the parks, is that still going to 
happen or is this now DORBA. 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager – this would now become DORBA. When we were doing the outreach for the 
trails and so forth, one of the members of DORBA actually lives in my neighborhood responded in the 
request to get involved in the trails and will be the primary contact for us.   
 
Councilmember Henderson – so when they host events, does it close the trail to our citizens that are not 
part of DORBA? 
 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director – no, and if they want to participate in it, they can.  
 
MOTION made by Councilmember Garber to authorize the city manager to execute a memorandum of 
agreement between the City of Corinth and the Dallas Off-Road Bicycle Association (DORBA), for the use 
and maintenance of Corinth trails. Seconded by Councilmember Pickens. 
 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

6. Consider and act on a request by Classic Mazda Company for an application to the Unified 
Development Code Section 4.01.15. General Requirements – Section E – 3. Maximum Height, Section 
E – 4 Maximum Sign Area and E- 5 Maximum Sign Structure Area.  The request is to allow certain 
increases to the monument sign allowed by ordinance requiring City Council approval.  The sign being 
replaced is located at 5000 S. I35E along the I-35E frontage, legally described as Lot 1, Blk A of the 
Classic Mazda Addition, City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. 

 
Cleve Joiner, Building Official - Classic Mazda is proposing to replace their current pole sign with a new 
Mazda corporate model monument sign complementing the significant remodel of the facility.  The new 
sign is eleven (11) feet shorter in height and three (3) square feet less in sign area than the existing sign. 
City ordinance allows the City Council to approve greater height and areas for signs.  In addition to the 
approval there are three (3) required performance-based enhancements. The proposed replacement sign 
meets five (5) of the eight (8) enhancements defined by the City of Corinth Code of Ordinances. The five 
performance-based enhancements Classic Mazda is offering for the sign allowances include architectural 
materials, features, and design matching the main building, as well as contrasting sign colors, and simple 
font styles with limited text or logo. 
 

SIGN MEASUREMENTS 
CURRENT 

SIGN 

PROPOSED 

SIGN 

COUNCIL 

APPROVAL 

HEIGHT 41 FEET 30 FEET 30 FEET 

SIGN AREA PER SIDE 105 SF 102 SF 300 SF 

SIGN STRUCTURE PER SIDE 212 SF 316.4 SF 320 SF 

 

 



 
 

 
MOTION made by Councilmember Henderson to approve as presented. Seconded by Councilmember 
Burke.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general 

updates and/or comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future 

events. Also, in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any 

Councilmember may direct that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 

 

There were no Council Comments made. 
 

Council recessed into Closed Session at 7:51 p.m. 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of 
the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act.  

 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 
discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an 
officer or employee. 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body 
is conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other 
incentive to a business prospect. 
 
a. Discuss potential Economic Development incentives for businesses seeking to locate in Corinth 

and supporting the TOD. 
 



 
 

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the 
City Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED 

SESSION ITEMS. 

Mayor came out of Closed Session as announced after Regular meeting and convened back 
into the Workshop at 7:53 p.m. 

 

ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the Regular meeting at 7:53 p.m. 

 
AYES: All 
 

Meeting adjourned. 
 

Approved by Council on the    day of    , 2020.  
 
 

       
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 

City of Corinth, Texas 



   
    PUBLIC HEARING    3.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 04/02/2020  
Title: Enterprise Rental Car
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Liebman, Director  Submitted By: Ben Rodriguez, Manager
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: N/A
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Economic Development

AGENDA ITEM
Conduct a public hearing, consider testimony, and act upon an ordinance amending the zoning classification from 
C-2, Commercial to PD, Planned Development with a base district of C-2, Commercial on an approximate 7.12 acre
tract of land legally described as Block 1, Lots 6-A1, 6-B1, and 6-C1 of the Pecan Creek Subdivision, and is
situated in the William Garrison Survey, Abstract 1545 within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas and is
more commonly known as 5150 S I-35E, Corinth, TX.( Enterprise PD Zoning) 

Staff Presentation
Applicant Presentation
Public Hearing
Staff Response
Take Action

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
This item is being brought back for consideration at the request of a council member and approved by City Council
on March 5, 2020. Supporting financial data will be available at the meeting and not distributed with the agenda
packet as it is proprietary information.

The applicant is requesting a Planned Development district to facilitate the development of a pick-up truck, car, and
truck rental facility with associated used car sales.

The facility will house three (3) different but related uses, including pick-up truck and car rentals, box/flatbed truck
rentals and used car sales. The applicant intends to demolish the existing structures and build a new facility to suit
their specific needs and is intended to reflect similar facilities Enterprise has within the metroplex in both Plano and
Southlake.

Additionally, the applicant is providing additional landscaping buffers and vegetation than what would be normally
required under the Unified Development Code in an effort to mitigate anyimpact of any facility on the surrounding
neighborhoods. The proposed ordinance includes the provision of a eight (8) foot solid masonry wall along
the southern property boundary as a buffer to the adjacent residential properties. The tree preservation
plan presented at the February 6, 2020 Council meeting is also included in the ordinance and identifies
the trees to be preserved as an additional buffer to the residential properties.

Staff has added language to the Planned Development that would prohibit the use of the property by a stand-alone
used car dealership by stating that used car sales must be in conjunction with auto and truck rentals. Finally, staff
has included language that limits the age of used cars sold on-site to the previous four (4) model years, with all
other vehicles being sold off-site. Staff believes this language will help ensure that a quality inventory of cars is
on-site.

The property is the location of the former Huffines Kia/Subaru dealership and has been vacant since Huffines
moved to their new location on IH35 in February 2019. At the time Huffines was going through the process of



zoning for their new location the owners for this tract filed an affidavit of release of nonconforming land use with
Denton County. This rezoning application does not claim any nonconforming land use rights as it is a new zoning
application for consideration, and the affadavit did not restrict the Planning and Zoning Commission or City
Council from reinstituting that use on the property.

Additionally, the property is in a less than ideal location with access being a challenging factor for the use of the
land by other commercial users, as one must Exit IH35 in Denton over a mile away in order to access this site. The
limited access makes the location less than ideal for other non-residential uses such as retail, restaurants or offices.
Due to the limited access the use of the property is mostly viable to those uses which do not need direct access such
as mini-storage, multi-family, or car dealerships.

Since access to the location is limited staff believes that the applicant's proposal represents an appropriate use for
the property.

Public Notices:
Public notices were mailed to all residents within 200 feet of the proposed change on March 17, 2020.  At the time
of packet creation staff has recieved one letter in support and no letters in opposition to the proposed change..
 
Notice of the public hearing was published in the March 17, 2020 edition of the Denton Record Chronicle.
 
Compliance with the Comprehensive Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan designates the future land use of this area as Commercial.
The proposal complies with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.
 
Supporting Documents: 

Proposed Ordinance
Affidavit of Release of Nonconforming Land Use
Mailed Public Notice
Public Hearing Notification Area Exhibit
Letter of Support

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval as presented.

Attachments
PD Ordinance 
Non-conforming release affidavit 
Enterprise Mailed Notice 
Enterprise Zoning Notification Area 
Letter of Support 



ORDINANCE NO. 20-04-02-__ 

 

ENTERPRISE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT #54 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS, AMENDING 

THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, SPECIFICALLY THE 

COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND THE “OFFICIAL 

ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS,” EACH 

BEING A PART OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE CITY 

OF CORINTH, BY AMENDING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION FOR 

THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A”, ATTACHED HERETO 

AND INCORPORATION HEREIN, FROM C-2, COMMERCIAL TO PD-

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ZONING DISTRICT WITH A BASE 

ZONING DESIGNATION OF C-2, COMMERCIAL ON AN 

APPROXIMATE 7.12 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LEGALLY DESCRIBED 

AS BLOCK 1, LOTS 6-A1, 6-B1, AND 6-C1 OF THE PECAN CREEK 

SUBDIVISION SITUATED IN THE WILLIAM GARRISON SURVEY, 

ABSTRACT 1545  IN THE CITY OF CORINTH, DENTON COUNTY, 

TEXAS, AND IDENTIFIED AS ENTERPRISE PLANNED 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 54 (“PD-54); PROVIDING FOR THE 

INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; PROVIDING A LEGAL PROPERTY 

DESCRIPTION; APPROVING A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 

PLAN (EXHIBIT “B”); APPROVING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT LAND 

USE REGULATIONS (EXHIBIT “C”); PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY 

NOT TO EXCEED $2,000 A DAY FOR EACH VIOLATION OF THE 

ORDINANCE AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL OCCUR ON EACH 

DAY THAT A VIOLATION OCCURS ON CONTINUES; PROVIDING A 

CUMULATIVE REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS 

CLAUSE;  PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; PROVIDING A 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Corinth, Texas, adopted Ordinance No. 13-05-02-08, which 

established a Unified Development Code of the City, including the Comprehensive Zoning 

Ordinance and the “Official Zoning District Map of the City of Corinth, Texas,” (the “Zoning 

Map”), in accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Property, described in Exhibit “A”, is zoned as PD-Planned Development 

zoning district, more specifically identified as Enterprise Planned Development District No. 54 

(“PD-54”), with a base zoning designation of C-2, Commercial under the City's Unified 

Development Code and as designated on the Zoning Map; and 

 

WHEREAS, an authorized person having a proprietary interest in the Property has 

requested an Amendment to the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and the Zoning Map to change 

the zoning classification of the Property; and  

 

 



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 2 of 11 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of 

Corinth gave the requisite notices by publication and otherwise and afforded a full and fair hearing 

to all property owners generally, and to the persons interested and situated in the affected area and 

in the vicinity thereof; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the Property has unique characteristics 

and that zoning through a planned development district is the most appropriate mechanism for 

zoning the Property, thus an amendment to the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and the Zoning 

Map of the City’s Unified Development Code, in accordance with the Land Use Regulations set 

forth in Exhibit “C”, should be approved; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the following factors in making a determination 

as to whether the requested change should be granted or denied: safety of the motoring public and 

pedestrians using the facilities in the area immediately surrounding the sites; safety from fire 

hazards and damages; noise producing elements and glare of the vehicular and stationary lights 

and effect of such lights on established character of neighborhoods; location, and types of signs 

and relation of signs to traffic control and adjacent property; street size and adequacy of width for 

traffic reasonably expected to be generated by the proposed use around the site and in the 

immediate neighborhood; adequacy of parking as determined by requirements of this ordinance 

for off-street parking facilities; location of ingress and egress points for parking and off-street 

loading spaces, and protection of public health by surfacing on all parking areas to control dust; 

effect on the promotion of health and the general welfare; effect on light and air; effect on the over-

crowding of the land; effect on the concentration of population, and effect on transportation, water, 

sewerage, schools, parks and other public facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council further considered among other things the character of the 

proposed district and its peculiar suitability for particular use requested and the view to conserve 

the value of the buildings, and encourage the most appropriate use of the land throughout this City; 

and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the requested Amendment to the Comprehensive 

Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map to effect the change in zoning for the Property promotes the 

health and the general welfare,  provides the Property with adequate light and air, prevents over-

crowding of land, avoids undue population concentration, and facilitates the adequate provision of 

transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks and other public requirements; as well as the 

general health, safety and welfare of the community;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CORINTH, TEXAS:  

 

SECTION 1. 

INCORPORATION OF PREMISES 

 

 The above and foregoing recitals are found to be true and correct and are incorporated into 

the body of this Ordinance for all purposes. 

 



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 3 of 11 
 

SECTION 2 

LEGAL PROPERTY DESCRIPTION; AMENDMENT 

 

That Ordinance No. 13-05-02-08, adopting the Unified Development Code of the City of 

Corinth (“UDC”), including the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance that establishes zoning districts 

in accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning Map of the City of Corinth, is 

hereby amended to change the zoning classification on an approximate 2.627 acre tract of land 

described in "Exhibit A" attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Property”), from C-2, 

Commercial to a PD-Planned Development zoning district with a base zoning designation of C-2, 

Commercial and identified as Enterprise Planned Development District No. 54 (“PD-54”), and the 

Zoning Map of the City is also hereby amended to reflect the new zoning classification for the 

Property. 

 

SECTION 3. 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN 

 

The Planned Development Concept Plan for the Property as set forth in “Exhibit B”, a copy 

of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, is hereby approved. 

 

SECTION 4. 

LAND USE REGULATIONS 

 

A. The Zoning and Land Use Regulations set forth in “Exhibit C” attached hereto and made a 

part hereof for all purposes are hereby adopted and shall be adhered to in their entirety for 

the purposes of this PD-Planned Development zoning district with a base zoning 

designation C-2, Commercial. In the event of conflict between the provisions of “Exhibit C” 

and provisions of any other City zoning regulations, including without limitation the 

regulations governing the C-2, Commercial zoning district, the provisions of “Exhibit C” 

shall control. 

 

B. That the zoning regulations and district herein established have been adopted in accordance 

with the Comprehensive Plan for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals and 

the general welfare of the community. They have been designed, with respect to both 

present conditions and the conditions reasonably anticipated to exist in the foreseeable 

future; to lessen congestion in the streets; to provide adequate light and air; to prevent over-

crowding of land; to avoid undue concentration of population; and to facilitate the adequate 

provision of transportation, water, sewerage, drainage and surface water, parks and other 

commercial needs and development of the community. They have been made after a full 

and complete hearing with reasonable consideration among other things of the character of 

the district and its peculiar suitability for the particular uses and with a view of conserving 

the value of buildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the 

community 

 

C. The Planned Development Concept Plan (Exhibit “B”) and the Land Use Regulations 

(Exhibit “C”) shall control the use and development of the Property, and all building 

permits and development requests shall be in accordance with applicable City ordinances, 



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 4 of 11 
 

the PD Concept Plan and Land Use Regulations.  The PD Concept Plan and Land Use 

Regulations   shall remain in effect as set forth herein unless amended by the City Council. 

 

If a change to the Concept Plan, is requested, the request shall be processed in accordance 

with the development standards in effect at the time the change is requested for the 

proposed development and shall be subject to City Council approval. 

 

SECTION 5. 

PENALTY FOR VIOLATIONS 

 

Any person, firm, or corporation who intentionally, knowingly or recklessly violates any 

provision of this Ordinance or the Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, shall be subject to a 

fine not to exceed the sum of five hundred dollars ($500.00) for each offense, and each and every 

day any such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense, provided, 

however, that in all cases involving violation of any provision of this Ordinance or Code of 

Ordinances, as amended hereby, governing the fire safety, zoning, or public health and sanitation 

shall be subject to a fine not to exceed the sum of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for each 

offense.  

 

SECTION 6. 

SEVERABILITY 

 

The provisions of the Ordinance are severable. However, in the event this Ordinance or 

any procedure provided in this Ordinance becomes unlawful, or is declared or determined by a 

judicial, administrative or legislative authority exercising its jurisdiction to be excessive, 

unenforceable, void, illegal or otherwise inapplicable, in while in part, the remaining and lawful 

provisions shall be of full force and effect and the City shall promptly promulgate new revised 

provisions in compliance with the authority’s decisions or enactment. 

 

SECTION 7. 

CUMULATIVE REPEALER 

 

This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Ordinances and shall not repeal any of the 

provisions of such Ordinances except for those instances where there are direct conflicts with the 

provisions of this Ordinance. Ordinances, or parts thereof, in force at the time this Ordinance shall 

take effect and that are inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent that they 

are inconsistent with this Ordinance.  Provided however, that any complaint, action, claim or 

lawsuit which has been initiated or has arisen under or pursuant to such other Ordinances on this 

date of adoption of this Ordinance shall continue to be governed by the provisions of such 

Ordinance and for that purpose the Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 8. 

SAVINGS 
 

 All rights and remedies of the City of Corinth, Texas are expressly saved as to any and all 

violations of the provisions of any other ordinance affecting zoning for the Property which have 



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 5 of 11 
 
secured at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations and all 

pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such ordinances 

same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final disposition by the court. 

  

SECTION 9. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This ordinance shall become effective after approval and publication as provided by law.  The City 

Secretary is directed to publish the caption and penalty of this ordinance two times. 

 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CORINTH THIS _______ DAY OF APRIL, 2020. 

 

       APPROVED: 

 

       ____________________________________ 

  

       Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

       

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

______________________________ 

Patricia Adams, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 6 of 11 
 

EXHIBIT “A”  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

 
  



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 7 of 11 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CONCEPT PLAN 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Brodriguez
Text Box

Brodriguez
Text Box
Exhibit "B"



Brodriguez
Rectangle

Brodriguez
Text Box
Exhibit "B"



Brodriguez
Rectangle

Brodriguez
Text Box
Exhibit "B"



Brodriguez
Rectangle

Brodriguez
Text Box
Exhibit "B"



Brodriguez
Rectangle

Brodriguez
Text Box
Exhibit "B"



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 8 of 11 
 

 
EXHIBIT "C" 

LAND USE 

REGULATIONS 

 

SECTION 1: REGULATIONS 

 

A. Purpose: The regulations set forth herein provide development standards for Non Residential 

Commercial designations along with uses associated with Used Automotive Dealerships – Sales, 

Automobile and Pick-up Truck Rental, Truck Rental, Outside Display and  Accessory Uses of 

Above Ground Storage Fuel Dispensing, Automatic Automobile Wash and Box Truck Manual 

Wash facilities. All uses allowed within the C-2 Commercial District are allowed within this 

Planned Development.  

B. Base District: The current C-2, Commercial District regulations of the Corinth Unified 

Development Code, as amended, shall apply except as modified herein. 

SECTION 2: USES AND AREA REGULATIONS: 

 

A. Purpose: This district is intended to provide for the development of a car/pick-up truck and truck 

rentals with associated used-only automobile dealership.  Accessory uses shall include an above 

ground fuel storage tank (for private use only), an enclosed automatic carwash, an open truck 

wash structure and product display areas. 

B. Permitted Uses and Use Regulations: In the Planned Development (PD  C-2) District for 

Commercial Use, no building or land shall be used and no building shall be hereafter erected , 

reconstructed, enlarged or converted, unless permitted by the Commercial (C-2) District 

regulations of the Unified Development Code except as otherwise allowed in this PD Ordinance . 

The Permitted Uses in the C-2 Commercial District as listed in Subsection 2.07 of the Unified 

Development Code, shall be permitted uses and shall also include the following use(s): 

1) Automobile Sales-Used Automobiles only 

a. Used automobile sales shall only be permitted in conjunction with the 

automobile/pick-up truck rental and truck rental uses.  

 

2) Re-sale of vehicles taken in trade on sales of primary inventory provided they meet the 

following conditions: 

a. The trade-in vehicle is four (4) model years old, or younger, and: 

b. The trade-in vehicle passes the same quality checks as are applied to rental fleet cars 

added to inventory, comprising body condition, safety and mechanical checklists. 

3) Product Display Area 

4) Automobile and Pick-up Truck Rental 

5) Truck Rental-maximum length 36’ with a GTW of 26,000 pounds 

6) Accessory Use-Above Ground Fuel Storage (UL 2085 Tank) for private use only-no 

retail sales of fuel. 

7) Accessory Use-Enclosed Automatic Carwash 



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 9 of 11 
 

8) Accessory Use-Open Truck Wash Structure 

 

1) Development Standards:  The Development Standards for this PD are the development standards for 

C-2 Commercial, Section 2.05.02 of the City's Unified Development Code except as otherwise stated 

herein. UDC 2.07.07 Accessory Buildings and Uses shall apply. 

2) UDC 2.08.05 Nonresidential Dimensional Regulations shall apply 

3) UDC 2.09.01 Landscape Regulations shall apply except as modified as follows: 

I. Landscaping along Pecan Creek Drive and behind the residential lots shall be a combination of 

3’-0”  ( 3’-6” above drive grade) screening berms, robust shrubbery, ornamental and canopy 

trees to a.) assist in screening the rear of the building and accessory buildings from view and 

b.) compliment the adjacent landscape in the residential district as indicated in Exhibit B, sheet 

4 of 5.  All other landscaped areas shall comply with the City’s Unified Development Code.   

II. Irrigation at the traditional landscape along Pecan Creek will be broadcast while the balance of 

the site will incorporate drip and point irrigation to conserve water resources. 

4) UDC 2.09.02 Tree Preservation Regulations shall apply. 

5) UDC 2.09.03 Vehicle Parking Regulations shall apply with the following clarifications: 

a) Code required parking shall be based on 1 space per 300 SF of gross building area. 

b) Customer parking shall be computed on the basis of 1 space per 500 SF of the sales and 

rental areas. 

6) UDC 2.09.04 Building Façade Material Standards shall apply except for the following: 

a) The exterior facade guidelines have been established within the Concept Plan, Concept 

Building Elevations and Percentages of Building Façade Materials charts provided in 

Exhibit B, sheets 3 and 5, of 5. 

7) UDC 2.09.05 Residential Adjacency Standards shall be voluntarily applied (not required for I-35 

properties) except for the following: 

b) UDC 2.09.05.1 Building materials will be permitted as shown on Exhibit B, sheet 3 and 

5, of 5. Building Elevations and Percentages of Building Facade Materials charts are 

provided in Exhibit B sheet 3 of 5. 

c) In lieu of providing a fence along the rear of the adjacent residential lots includes a 35’-

0” landscaped buffer with turf grass and trees as detailed in Exhibit B, sheets 1 and 4 of 

5. 

d) UDC 2.09.05.2 No building, including buildings with a footprint of six thousand (6,000) 

square feet or less (as provided for in the UDC 2.09.05), shall be required to feature a 

pitched roof to maintain continuity of architectural design across the entire site. 

e) Loudspeaker communications systems will not be permitted. 

8) UDC 2.09.06 Nonresidential Architectural Standards shall comply with the architectural elevations 

provided in Exhibit B, sheet 3 of 5. 

9) UDC 2.09.07 Lighting and Glare Regulations shall be subject to the following exceptions and 

supplemental provisions: 

a) LED luminaires are accepted for site lighting. 

b) Site luminaire heads shall not exceed 28’-0” from adjacent ground surface. 

c) Where luminaires are adjacent to, or near, residential property, shields shall be installed to limit the 

spill over to 0 fc at the property lines.  Luminaires shall be designed as to produce no more than 0.3fc 

over all other non-residential property lines. 

10) UDC 2.09.07 C.3-4 Automated Site Lighting shall apply with the following clarifications: 

a) Illumination in the Product Display Area shall be between 15 and 10 fc during the period 

from dark to 10 PM at which time the lighting controls shall automatically reduce the 

intensity to between 2.5 and 1.5 fc for night security lighting. 

b) All other site lighting shall be between 2.5 and 1.5 fc from dusk to dawn for security 

lighting. 



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 10 of 11 
 

c) Lighting spilling onto adjacent properties shall be governed by item 9, c) above. 

 

11) UDC 4.01 Sign Regulations:  The regulations shall apply except as follows: 

a) UDC 4.01.15 C - Monument Sign provisions shall comply with this section of the UDC: 

I. There shall be a 15’-0” setback from property line to the nearest portion of a 

monument sign (either base or sign face). Sign area and dimensions shall comply 

with design standards for a multi-tenant monument sign along I-35 as found in 

Section 4 of the UDC. 

II. One (1) multitenant monument sign shall be placed at the I-35 right-of-way as 

located on sheet 1 of 5. 

III. Other than directional signage, as described below, only those Building Signs 

indicated on Exhibit B, sheet 3 of 5 shall be permitted.  

IV. Except for directional signage, no other signage shall be permitted along Pecan Creek 

Drive. 

b) On-site, free standing directional signage shall conform to the design criteria in the UDC and 

shall be permitted based on an on-site directional signage plan submitted to and approved by 

the Director of Planning when such signage is requested by submittal of a sign or building 

permit. Such signs shall be allowed in the quantity and at locations as approved by the 

Director of Planning. Directional signage may include directional information such as car 

sales, car rental and similar related locations on the property along with arrows or directional 

symbols to aid in internal traffic flow/control. 

c) Attached Sign - Building Mounted Signage - Building mounted signs shall comply with 

Section 4 of the City of Corinth UDC and as detailed in Exhibit B, sheet 3 of 5. 

d) Sign permits will require permitting aside from the building permit. 

12) UDC 4 .02 Fence and Screening Regulations shall apply except as follows: 

a) No fencing or pipe rails are to be installed during the initial development of the property.  

Should future security concerns dictate, a pipe rail, not to exceed 24" in height, shall be 

allowed around any portion of the site to supplement security efforts. Should future security 

concerns dictate, such installation shall be coordinated with the City of Corinth and comply 

with the City requirements and design parameters.  In this event, installation will require a 

separate permit. 

b) Aluminum access gates (open during business hours) will be installed as indicated in Exhibit 

B, sheet 1 of 5.  Details of these gates are delineated in Exhibit B, sheet 2 of 5.  The gates 

shall be equipped with a locking device allowing for owner and fire/emergency access 

utilizing a Knox Lock as detailed on sheet 2 of 5. 

c) All mechanical equipment is roof mounted and the parapet design affords screening to a 

visual distance of 250’-0” as viewed from 5’-2” above ground level. 

d) The dumpster will be enclosed in a masonry enclosure with solid steel gates as detailed in 

Exhibit B, sheet 2 of 5.  The masonry enclosure and steel gates shall match the main building 

materials and color. 

e) The fuel tank is screened from I-35 by the building and from Pecan Creek Drive and the 

residential areas with an 8’-0” high masonry screen wall painted to match the main building 

as indicated in Exhibit B, sheets 1 and 4 of 5. 

 

13) Project Phasing and Components Included in each phase: 

a) All work indicated in Exhibit B shall be performed in a single phase. 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 20-02-06- 

Page 11 of 11 
 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 

TREES TO BE PRESERVED 

 



Ples Schnitz
Oval

Ples Schnitz
Oval

Ples Schnitz
Oval

Ples Schnitz
Oval

Ples Schnitz
Typewritten Text

Ples Schnitz
Typewritten Text

Ples Schnitz
Typewritten Text
31" oak

Ples Schnitz
Line

Ples Schnitz
Typewritten Text
7" oak

Ples Schnitz
Typewritten Text
9" oak

Ples Schnitz
Line

Ples Schnitz
Line

Ples Schnitz
Typewritten Text
16" oak

Ples Schnitz
Line

Ples Schnitz
Typewritten Text

Brodriguez
Text Box
                    EXHIBIT "D"Trees to be preserved during/after development

Brodriguez
Rectangle

















 

 

City Council Regular Session  

Date: THURSDAY, APRIL 2, 2020 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 

Dear Property Owner: 
 

The City Council of the City of Corinth will hold a Public Hearing on Thursday, April 2, 2020 at 7:00 P.M. in 
The Corinth City Hall Council Chambers located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas, to hear public opinion 

regarding the following: 
 
A rezoning request by Enterprise Car Sales and Rent a Car to amend the zoning classification from  C-2, 

Commercial to PD, Planned Development with a base district of C-2, Commercial on an ±7.12 acre tract of land 
legally described as Block 1, Lots 6-A1, 6-B1, and 6-C1 of the Pecan Creek Subdivision, and is situated in the 

William Garrison Survey, Abstract 1545 within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas and is more commonly 
known as 5150 S I-35E, Corinth, TX (Enterprise Car Sales and Rent a Car). 
 

As a property owner within two hundred (200) feet of this property, you are invited to attend these meetings and 
voice your opinion.  You are not required to be present, but all interested parties wishing to be heard should appear 

at the time and place stated above. 
 
Your opinion regarding the request on the property described above may be expressed by notation on this form 

or by letter.  You may support or oppose this request; your opposition will be considered a protest. 
 

I am writing in (Check as applicable) Support: ____    Opposition: ____ of the proposal. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Name/Address  

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Please do not hesitate to contact Ben Rodriguez (ben.rodriguez@cityofcorinth.com) at (940) 498-3261 if you 
have any questions regarding this rezoning request. 

 
This item is scheduled to go before City Council at their regular meeting on April 2, 2020.  Please check the City 
Council agenda prior to the meeting to verify placement on the April 2, 2020 agenda. The agendas are available 

on the City of Corinth website 72 hours prior to the City Council meetings. 
 

 
 



 



2108

1507

5491

2409

1612

1665

2111

1618

2405

2220

2116

2403

2407

2001

2236 2409

2202

2222

2237

2206

2214

1509

1514

1501

2404

1511

1510

5401

2229

2213

2210

2711

2209

2701

1665

2408
2107

2212

1512

1604

2201

1617

5100

2408

1501
1502

2221

2715

1509

2208

2705

5050

2215

2406

2208

2405

1609

2235

2227

1616

1503

2238

2202

1626

2401

2402

2227

1618

1512

1601

2110

1607

5400

5150

2200

1507

1511

1606

1606

1612

2201

5451

2407

2108

1513

1513

2110

1510

2709

1611

1600

2215

1613

2407

2226

2113

1602

1600

1504

1614
1617

2403

2211

1500

2223

1616
2210

1665

16221609

2212
1604

2205

2115

2233

1504

1601 2400

1603

1515

2700

1610

5070

2405

1624

2203

1605
2207

5451

2205

1623

2208

2112

2213

1602

2401

2216

1251

1607

2400

1603

2212

1620

4901

1613

1300

1622

2406

1610

27071632

1506

2206

2206

2713

1614

2409

2204

1619

2109

2225

1621

2224

2404

1505

1628

2214 5150

2403

1630

1605

2504

24022204

2401

2106

1508

2114

1615

2223

2211

1611

5650

1608

1615

2221

1503

1619

1508

2218
1500

2112

2219

1608

1505

2703

1665 2234

2217

2231

1620

2203

2205

2225

1502

1665

1665

2207

THE KNOLL
PARK

KNOB HILL DR

KNOLL RIDGE CIR

OLD HWY 77

ASPEN

CREEKWOOD

VISTA

CT

POST OAK CT

ASHTON GARDENS LN

SHADOW CRESTDR

KNOLL RIDGEDR

PECAN CREEK CIR

PO
ST

 OAK DR
POST OAK DR

Parcels within 200 ft
200 ft. Buffer
Huffines

Huffines Zoning
Change

0 370185
Feet

200 ft. Notification
Buffer

This map is the property of the City of
Corinth, and is not to be reproduced
by any means, mechanical or digital,
without written consent of the City.
This product is for informational
purposes and may not have been
prepared for or be suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the
approximate relative location of property
boundaries.

1 inch = 210 feet





   
    PUBLIC HEARING    4.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 04/02/2020  
Title: Comprehensive plan update
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Liebman, Director  Submitted By: Ben Rodriguez, Manager
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: 
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement & Proactive Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Conduct a public hearing to consider testimony and take action on an amendment and possible restatement to the
City’s Comprehensive Master Plan “City of Corinth 2010 Comprehensive Plan” adopted by Ordinance No.
10-05-06-12 by adopting an ordinance approving a new Comprehensive Master Plan entitled “Envision Corinth,
2040 Comprehensive Plan.” (Comprehensive Plan)
THE PUBLIC HEARING LISTED ABOVE WILL NOT BE HELD. THE ITEM IS INCLUDED ON THE
AGENDA BECAUSE NOTICES WERE POSTED IN THE CITY'S NEWSPAPER OF RECORD, THE DENTON
RECORD CHRONICLE. THE PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE RE-NOTICED ONCE SOCIAL GATHERING
RESTRICTIONS ARE LIFTED.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
N/A

RECOMMENDATION
N/A



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    5.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 04/02/2020  
Title: May 2, 2020 General Election
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on a Resolution ordering the General election scheduled for May 2, 2020 be postponed until
Tuesday, November 3, 2020; making findings related thereto, and providing an effective date.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

RECOMMENDATION

Attachments
Resolution 



Page 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-04-02-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, 
TEXAS, ORDERING THAT THE GENERAL ELECTION SCHEDULED 

TO BE HELD ON SATURDAY, MAY 2, 2020, BE POSTPONED TO 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2020; MAKING FINDINGS RELATED 
THERETO; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, on or about March 13, 2020, the Governor of the State of Texas 

certified that the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) poses an imminent threat of disaster and, 
under the authority vested in the Governor by Section 418.014 of the Texas Government 
Code, declared a state of disaster in every county in the State of Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about March 18, 2020, the Governor issued a Proclamation 

suspending certain sections of the Texas Election Code, among others, to allow political 
subdivisions of the State that would otherwise hold elections on May 2, 2020, to 
postpone general and special elections for 2020 only to the next uniform election date, 

November 3, 2020 without otherwise adjusting the terms office or election date; and 
 

WHEREAS, on or about February 6, 2020, the City adopted Resolution No. 20-
02-06 which, in part, ordered a general election for Saturday, May 2, 2020, to elect one 
(1) Council Member for Place No. 1, one (1) Council Member for Place No. 3, and one 

(1) Council Member for Place No. 4, for two (2) year terms each to serve as Members 
of the Corinth City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is pursuant to the authority of the Governor’s March 13, 2020, 

disaster declaration and the March 18, 2020, proclamation that this Resolution is 

adopted; i.e., to postpone the City Council general election in the City from Saturday, 
May 2, 2020, to Tuesday, November 3, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 20-02-06 remains effective, but pursuant to this 

Resolution, the general election date provided for in Resolution No. 20-02-06 shall be 

postponed. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1 
 

All of the above findings are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if fully set forth herein. 

 

SECTION 2 
 

The general election scheduled for Saturday, May 2, 2020, to elect one (1) 
Council Member for Place No. 1, one (1) Council Member for Place No. 3, and one (1) 



Page 2 
 

Council Member for Place No. 4 for two (2) year terms each to serve as Members of 
the Corinth City Council, is hereby postponed until Tuesday, November 3, 2020, 

pursuant to the authority referenced in the recitals to this Resolution, and it is hereby 
so ordered. 

 
SECTION 3 

 

Pursuant to Election Advisory No. 2020-12, issued by the Texas Secretary of 
State’s Office on or about March 18, 2020, this Order also makes the following 

findings, and incorporates them by reference into this Resolution: (1) all candidate 
filings for the May 2, 2020, general election shall remain valid for the November 3, 
2020, general election; (2) the filing period will not be re-opened for the November 3, 

2020, general election; (3) all applications for a ballot by mail for voters who are voting 
by mail due to being over the age of 65 or due to disability will remain valid for the 

postponed election whereas all applications for a ballot by mail based upon a voter’s 
expected absence from the county will not be valid for the postponed election; and (4) 
the major relevant dates for the November 3, 2020, general election are as follows:  

deadline for registration to vote in the November 3, 2020, election—October 5, 2020; 
the deadline to submit an application for a ballot by mail—October 23,2020; and early 

voting—October 19. 2020, through October 30, 2020. 
  

SECTION 4 

 
This Resolution shall become effective from and after its passage. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this                day of  , 2020. 

       CITY OF CORINTH 
        
       
             
       Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Patricia A. Adams, City Attorney 

 



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    6.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 04/02/2020  
Title: May 2, 2020 Special Election - Short Term Motor Vehicle Tax
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on an Ordinance ordering a Joint Special Election scheduled for May 2, 2020 be postponed until
Tuesday, November 3, 2020.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The proposed ordinance would delay the car rental tax until the November general election date.

RECOMMENDATION
approve the ordiannce as porposed.

Attachments
Ordinance 



Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-04-02-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS, 
ORDERING THAT THE SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 2, 2020, FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY, A BALLOT 
PROPOSITION ON THE QUESTION OF APPROVING AND IMPLEMENTING 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-02-06-08, DESIGNATING A MULTIPURPOSE AMPHITHEATER 

AND RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE AS A SPORTS AND COMMUNITY VENUE 
PROJECT, (“AMPHITHEATER VENUE PROJECT”), AND ADOPTING A NEW TAX, A 

SHORT TERM MOTOR VEHICLE RENTAL TAX AT A MAXIMUM RATE OF FIVE 
PERCENT (5%), TO FUND THE AMPHITHEATER VENUE PROJECT, BE 
POSTPONED TO TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2020; PROVIDING FOR THE 

INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; PROVIDING FOR POSTPONEMENT OF THE 
SPECIAL ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR A CUMULATIVE CLAUSE; PROVIDING 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, on or about March 13, 2020, the Governor of the State of Texas 

certified that the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) poses an imminent threat of disaster and, 
under the authority vested in the Governor by Section 418.014 of the Texas Government 

Code, declared a state of disaster in every county in the State of Texas; and 
 
WHEREAS, on or about March 18, 2020, the Governor issued a Proclamation 

suspending certain sections of the Texas Election Code, among others, to allow political 
subdivisions of the State that would otherwise hold elections on May 2, 2020, to 

postpone general and special elections for 2020 only to the next uniform election date, 
November 3, 2020 without otherwise adjusting the election date; and 

 

WHEREAS, on or about February 13, 2020, the City adopted Ordinance No. 20-
02-06, which, in part, ordered a joint special election for the purpose of submitting to 

the qualified voters of the City, a ballot proposition on the question of approving and 
implementing Resolution No. 20-02-06-08, designating the Amphitheater Venue Project 
as a sports and community venue project, and adopting a new tax, a short term motor 

vehicle rental tax at a maximum rate of five percent (5%), to fund the Amphitheater Venue 
Project, for Saturday, May 2, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is pursuant to the authority of the Governor’s March 13, 2020, 

disaster declaration and the March 18, 2020, proclamation that this Ordinance is 

adopted; i.e., to postpone the joint special election from Saturday, May 2, 2020, to 
Tuesday, November 3, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 20-02-06 remains effective, but pursuant to this 

Ordinance, the special election date provided for in Ordinance No. 20-02-06 shall be 

postponed. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CORINTH, TEXAS: 



Page 2 
 

SECTION 1 
INCORPORATION OF PREMISES 

 
All of the above findings are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 

incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if fully set forth herein. 
 

SECTION 2 

POSTPONEMENT OF SPECIAL ELECTION DATE 
 

The special election scheduled for Saturday, May 2, 2020, for the purpose of 
submitting to the qualified voters of the City, a ballot proposition on the question of 
approving and implementing Resolution No. 20-02-06-08, designating the Amphitheater 

Venue Project as a sports and community venue project, and adopting a new tax, a short 
term motor vehicle rental tax at a maximum rate of five percent (5%), to fund the 

Amphitheater Venue Project, is hereby postponed until Tuesday, November 3, 2020, 
pursuant to the authority referenced in the recitals to this Ordinance, and it is hereby 
so ordered. 

 
SECTION 3 

ADDITIONAL FINDINGS 
 
Pursuant to Election Advisory No. 2020-12, issued by the Texas Secretary of 

State’s Office on or about March 18, 2020, this Ordinance also makes the following 
findings, and incorporates them by reference into this Ordinance: (1) all applications 

for a ballot by mail for voters who are voting by mail due to being over the age of 65 
or due to disability will remain valid for the postponed election whereas all applications 
for a ballot by mail based upon a voter’s expected absence from the county will not be 

valid for the postponed election; and (2) the major relevant dates for the November 3, 
2020, special election are as follows:  deadline for registration to vote in the November 

3, 2020, special election—October 5, 2020; the deadline to submit an application for 
a ballot by mail—October 23, 2020; and early voting—October 19. 2020, through 
October 30, 2020. 

 
 

SECTION 4 
CUMULATIVE CLAUSE 

 

  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of Ordinances of the City of 
Corinth, Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with 

the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the conflicting provisions of such 
ordinances are hereby repealed. 
 

 
 

 
 



Page 3 
 

SECTION 5 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 

 
  It is hereby declared to be the intent of the City Council of the City of Corinth that 

the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are 
severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this Ordinance 
shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of 

competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, or sections of this Ordinance, since the same 

would have been enacted by the City Council without incorporation of any such 
unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section. 

 

SECTION 6 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage. 

 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CORINTH, TEXAS, ON THIS __ DAY OF ____________, 2020.    

  
 
       CITY OF CORINTH 

        
       

       __________________________________ 
       Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
 

 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 

__________________________________ 
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
__________________________________ 

Patricia Adams, City Attorney 
 



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    7.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 04/02/2020  
Title: May 2, 2020 Special Election - Fire District Tax
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas and the Temporary Board of
Directors of the Proposed City of Corinth Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency Medical Services District
postponing the Joint Special Election until Tuesday, November 3, 2020.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The proposed ordinance would delay the election on the fire district until the November general election date. 

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt the ordinance as presented.

Attachments
Ordinance 



Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-04-02-07 
 

AN ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS, AND THE 
TEMPORARY BOARD OF DIRECTORS, (“TEMPORARY BOARD”), OF THE 

PROPOSED CITY OF CORINTH  FIRE CONTROL, PREVENTION, AND EMERGENCY 
MEDICAL SERVICES DISTRICT, (“DISTRICT”),  ORDERING THE JOINT ELECTION 
ORDER ORDERING A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 2, 2020, FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE PROPOSED 
DISTRICT, COMPRISING THE CITY OF CORINTH, A BALLOT PROPOSITION 

SERVING AS A CONFIRMATION ELECTION ORDER FOR THE DISTRICT AND 
ADOPTING A SALES AND USE TAX FOR THE DISTRICT AT A RATE OF ONE-
FOURTH OF ONE PERCENT, AND A BALLOT PROPOSITION TO DESIGNATE THAT 

THE CITY COUNCIL MAY, BY RESOLUTION, BE APPOINTED TO SERVE AS THE 
PERMANENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DISTRICT, BE POSTPONED TO 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2020; PROVIDING FOR THE INCORPORATION OF 
PREMISES; PROVIDING FOR POSTPONEMENT OF THE JOINT SPECIAL 
ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR A CUMULATIVE CLAUSE; PROVIDING 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, on or about March 13, 2020, the Governor of the State of Texas 
certified that the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) poses an imminent threat of disaster and, 
under the authority vested in the Governor by Section 418.014 of the Texas Government 

Code, declared a state of disaster in every county in the State of Texas; and 
 

WHEREAS, on or about March 18, 2020, the Governor issued a Proclamation 
suspending certain sections of the Texas Election Code, among others, to allow political 
subdivisions of the State that would otherwise hold elections on May 2, 2020, to 

postpone general and special elections for 2020 only to the next uniform election date, 
November 3, 2020 without otherwise adjusting the election date; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about February 13, 2020, the City adopted Ordinance No. 20-

02-13, which, in part, ordered a joint special election for the purpose of submitting to 

the qualified voters of the proposed District, comprising the City of Corinth, a ballot 
proposition serving as a confirmation election order for the District and adopting a sales 

and use tax for the District at a rate of one-fourth of one percent dedicated to fire control, 
prevention, and emergency medical services programs, and a ballot proposition to 
designate that the City Council may, by resolution, be appointed to serve as the 

permanent board of directors of the District, for Saturday, May 2, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, on or about February 13, 2020, the Temporary Board of the District, 
as part of a duly conducted meeting, ordered a joint special election for the purpose of 
submitting to the qualified voters of the proposed District, comprising the City of Corinth, 

a ballot proposition serving as a confirmation election order for the District and adopting 
a sales and use tax for the District at a rate of one-fourth of one percent dedicated to fire 

control, prevention, and emergency medical services programs, and a ballot proposition 



Page 2 
 

to designate that the City Council may, by resolution, be appointed to serve as the 
permanent board of directors of the District, for Saturday, May 2, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is pursuant to the authority of the Governor’s March 13, 2020, 

disaster declaration and the March 18, 2020, proclamation that this Ordinance is 
adopted; i.e., to postpone the joint special election from Saturday, May 2, 2020, to 
Tuesday, November 3, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 20-02-13 remains effective, but pursuant to this 

Ordinance, the special election date provided for in Ordinance No. 20-02-13 shall be 
postponed. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CORINTH, TEXAS, AND THE TEMPORARY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

PROPOSED CITY OF CORINTH FIRE CONTROL, PREVENTION, AND 
EMERGENCY MEDICALS SERVICES DISTRICT: 

 

SECTION 1 
INCORPORATION OF PREMISES 

 
All of the above findings are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 

incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if fully set forth herein. 

 
SECTION 2 

POSTPONEMENT OF SPECIAL ELECTION DATE 
 
The special election scheduled for Saturday, May 2, 2020 for the purpose of 

submitting to the qualified voters of the proposed District, comprising the City of 
Corinth, a ballot proposition serving as a confirmation election order for the District and 

adopting a sales and use tax for the District at a rate of one-fourth of one percent 
dedicated to fire control, prevention, and emergency medical services programs, and a 
ballot proposition to designate that the City Council may, by resolution, be appointed to 

serve as the permanent board of directors of the District, is hereby postponed unti l 
Tuesday, November 3, 2020, pursuant to the authority referenced in the recitals to this 

Ordinance, and it is hereby so ordered. 
 

SECTION 3 

ADDITIONAL FINDINGS 
 

Pursuant to Election Advisory No. 2020-12, issued by the Texas Secretary of 
State’s Office on or about March 18, 2020, this Ordinance also makes the following 
findings, and incorporates them by reference into this Ordinance: (1) all applications 

for a ballot by mail for voters who are voting by mail due to being over the age of 65 
or due to disability will remain valid for the postponed election whereas all applications 

for a ballot by mail based upon a voter’s expected absence from the county will not be 
valid for the postponed election; and (2) the major relevant dates for the November 3, 



Page 3 
 

2020, special election are as follows:  deadline for registration to vote in the November 
3, 2020, special election—October 5, 2020; the deadline to submit an application for 

a ballot by mail—October 23, 2020; and early voting—October 19. 2020, through 
October 30, 2020. 

 
SECTION 4 

CUMULATIVE CLAUSE 

 
  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of Ordinances of the City of 

Corinth, Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with 
the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the conflicting provisions of such 
ordinances are hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 5 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
 
  It is hereby declared to be the intent of the City Council of the City of Corinth that 

the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are 
severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this Ordinance 

shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, or sections of this Ordinance, since the same 

would have been enacted by the City Council without incorporation of any such 
unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section. 

 
SECTION 6 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage. 

 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CORINTH, TEXAS, ON THE  __ DAY OF ____________, 2020, AND BY THE 

TEMPORARY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CITY OF CORINTH FIRE CONTROL, 
PREVENTION, AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES DISTRICT ON THIS THE  __ 

DAY OF ____________, 2020.      
 
       CITY OF CORINTH 

        
       

       __________________________________ 
       Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
 

 
 

  



Page 4 
 

TEMPORARY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
PROPOSED CITY OF CORINTH FIRE CONTROL, 

PREVENTION, AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
       __________________________________ 
       By:  

        
 

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Patricia Adams, City Attorney 



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    8.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 04/02/2020  
Title: Mayor's Declaration 
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and take appropriate action on an Ordinance declaring a local state of disaster for public health
emergency for the City of Corinth; providing Orders related thereto; providing a penalty; and providing an
effective date.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Staff is preparing a mergency declaration for executionj by the mayor.  State law requires approval by the council
within seven days.  

The declaration will be presented at the meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

Attachments
Declaration Ordinance 



 

 ORDINANCE NO. 20-04-02-08 
 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS 
DECLARATION OF LOCAL DISASTER  

FOR PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY AND ORDER FOR 
PREPAREDNESS AND MITIGATION OF CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19); 

AND PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR VIOLATIONS HEREOF 

 
WHEREAS, beginning in December 2019, Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19), has spread 

throughout the world and has now been declared a global pandemic by the World Health 
Organization; and 
 

WHEREAS, symptoms of COVID-19 include fever, coughing, and shortness of breath, 
and in some cases the virus has caused death; and 

 
WHEREAS, the known cases of COVID-19 diagnosed in the State of Texas are currently 
increasing daily and the disease is easily transmitted through person to person contact, 

especially in group settings, thus, it is essential that the spread of the virus be slowed to 
protect members of the public, to protect the ability of public and private health care 

providers to handle the influx of new patients and to safeguard public health and safety; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Community spread COVID-19 cases have been positively confirmed in 
neighboring cities and counties; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 37.08, “Organization”, of Chapter 37, “Emergency 
Management”, of Title III, “Administration”, of the City of Corinth’s Code of Ordinances, 

the Mayor serves as the Emergency Management Director of the City’s Office of 
Emergency Management, and in his absence, the Mayor Pro Tempore shall serve in that 

capacity; and  for purposes of this disaster, the city manager or his designee is hereby 
appointed as the emergency management coordinator; and    
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has determined it necessary to declare a local state of disaster 
due to public health emergency, and rather than exercising his authority to issue a 

declaration of local disaster for a seven-day period and seek extension or continuation by 
City Council, the Mayor has determined it necessary to present this Ordinance to the City 
Council to take effect at 10:59 p.m. on April 2, 2020 and to remain in effect until the Mayor 

declares the emergency terminated; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 37.07, “Mayor’s Powers During Disaster or Emergency”, 
of the City’s Code of Ordinances, upon declaration of a crisis, the Mayor is vested with 
the full power and authority to issue orders reasonably necessary to protect the health, 

security, safety, peace, life and property of the City and its inhabitants during the time of 
such crisis, as more particularly described in subsections (A)-(GG) of Section 37.07; and  

 



 

WHEREAS, Section 37.09, “Duties and Responsibilities of the Emergency Management 
Director”, of the City’s Code of Ordinances further provides that the Mayor shall be 

authorized to declare the emergency terminated; and 
 

WHEREAS, Governor Abbott issued Executive Order GA-08 on March 19, 2020, Relating 
to COVID-19  Preparedness and Mitigation (“GA-08”) incorporating Guidelines from 
President Trump and the United States Centers for Disease Control (“CDC”); and 

 
WHEREAS, because it is imperative that the City take action to slow the spread of 

COVID-19, the Council has reviewed current City functions, including the use of City 
facilities, City services and operations and public gatherings and has determined it 
necessary and appropriate to adopt this Ordinance for the preservation of public health, 

safety and welfare. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CORINTH, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. Incorporation of Premises.  
 
1.01. Recitals. The premises set forth above are the stated findings of the City Council of the 

City of Corinth, serve as the basis for and are incorporated into this Ordinance as if written 
word for word. 
 

1.02. Order of Governor Abbott. Executive Order, GA-08, is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 
and is incorporated into this Ordinance as if written word for word.  Exhibit “A” shall 
automatically be amended in accordance with any future Executive Orders issued by 
Governor Abbott without need for Council action to amend this Ordinance.    

 

1.03. The President’s Coronavirus Guidelines for America.  The President’s Coronavirus 
Guidelines for America are attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated into this 
Ordinance as if written word for word.  Exhibit “B” shall automatically be amended in 
accordance with any future President’s Coronavirus Guidelines for America issued by the 
President without need for Council action to amend this Ordinance.    

 

1.04. The Denton County Disaster Declaration and Executive Order.  The Denton County 
Disaster Declaration and Executive Order of the Denton County Judge, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated into this Ordinance as if written word for 
word. Exhibit “C” shall automatically be amended in accordance with any future Denton 
County Disaster Declaration and Executive Orders issued by the Denton County Judge  
without need for Council action to amend this Ordinance 

 

Section 2.   Local Disaster for Public Health Emergency Declared.  The City of Corinth 
Emergency Management Director, Mayor Bill Heidemann, hereby declares a local state 
of disaster for public health emergency for the City of Corinth, a Texas home-rule 

municipal corporation, pursuant to Section 37.07, “Mayor’s Powers During Disaster or 
Emergency”, of Chapter 37, “Emergency Management”, of Title III, “Administration” of the 

City’s Code of Ordinances, effective 10:59 p.m. on April 2, 2020 and shall continue in 
effect until discontinued by action of the Mayor or as otherwise provided by law. 



 

 
Section 3.  Publication and Filing of Declaration and Ordinance.  Pursuant to Section 

37.09, “Duties and Responsibilities of the Emergency Management Director”, of the City’s 
Code of Ordinances, this ordinance declaring a local state of disaster for public health 

emergency shall be given in the official newspaper of the City or by local radio or 
television.  The City of Corinth will promptly provide copies of this Ordinance by posting 
on the City of Corinth website. In addition, the owner, manager, or operator of any facility 

that is likely to be impacted by this Ordinance is strongly encouraged to post a copy of 
this Ordinance onsite and to provide a copy to any member of the public asking for a 

copy. 
 
Section 4.   Orders Adopted.  Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 122.006, the 

City may adopt rules to protect the health of persons in the City and provide for the 
establishment of quarantine stations, emergency hospitals, and other hospitals. 

Additionally, the City Council is authorized to adopt rules related to the use and operation 
of City facilities and the provision of City services. Effective as of 10:59 p.m. on April 2, 
2020 and continuing in effect until discontinued by action of the Corinth City Council or 

as otherwise provided by law, the following orders shall apply within the corporate limits 
of the City of Corinth: 

 
A. Definitions.   

 

1. Community Gathering:  For purposes of this Order, Community 
Gathering is any indoor or outdoor event or convening, subject to the 

exceptions and clarifications below, that brings together or is likely to bring 
together ten (10) or more persons at the same time in a single room or other 
single confined or enclosed space, such as an auditorium, theatre, stadium 

(indoor or outdoor), arena or event center, meeting hall, conference center, 
large cafeteria, or any other confined indoor or confined outdoor space. 

 
2.  Essential Services:  Essential Services means services, by 
whomsoever rendered, and whether rendered to the government or to any 

other person, the interruption of which would endanger life, health or 
personal safety of the whole or part of the population. Essential services as 

defined by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security Cyber and 
Infrastructure Security Agency's (CISA) Essential Critical Infrastructure 
Workforce Memorandum dated March 19, 2020 may continue to their 

operation appropriately modified to account for Centers for Disease Control 
(CDC) workforce and consumer protection guidance. 

 
B. Community Gatherings:  The City of Corinth strongly recommends canceling, 

rescheduling, or not attending a Community Gathering.  The City of Corinth 

strongly urges organizations that serve high-risk populations to cancel 
gatherings of more than ten (10) people. These recommendations are based 

on the Social Distancing Practices attached to this Order as Exhibit “D”, a 
copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, as well as the 



 

“Implementation of Mitigation Strategies for Communities with Local COVID-19 
Transmission” issued by the United States Centers for Disease Control and 

Prevention (“CDC”). The City of Corinth urges people to not attend non-
essential gatherings of any nature during the duration of this Ordinance in order 

to help slow down the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 
 

C. Essential Services and City Facilities.  The City of Corinth provides essential 

services required to maintain the health, safety and welfare of the public 
generally and of the residents of the City of Corinth; therefore, City facilities 

necessary for City staff to provide essential services shall remain open to the 
public; provided however, that social distance shall be practiced at all times 
within those City facilities that are open to the public.    
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City Manager may recommend that other 
actions be taken to limit in person interactions at City facilities and to address 
City staff, and the Mayor is hereby expressly authorized to provide approval of 

the City Manager’s recommendations and to take such action as necessary to 
ensure that the purposes of this Ordinance are effected.  

 
D. Municipal Court Proceedings. Nonessential Municipal Court shall be postponed 

in accordance with orders issued by the Presiding Judge and recommendation 

of the Office of Court Administration, operating under the direction and 
supervision of the Texas Supreme Court.  

 
E. Fees and Interruption of Utility Services.  The Mayor is authorized to direct the 

City Manager or designee to take necessary actions regarding fees  associated 

with utility billing, including without limitation, extending time for payment and 
suspending utility shut offs for customers negatively impacted by job loss or 

reduced income who can provide verifiable documentation that their hardship 
is a direct result of COVID-19. 

 

F. Board and Commission Meetings.  The Mayor is authorized to postpone or 
cancel any and all meetings of a board or commission of the City of Corinth as 
he determines appropriate based upon updated orders of the federal, State or 

local government.  
 

Section 5.  Penalty.  Failure to comply with any of the Orders in this Ordinance is an 
offense and shall be punishable by a fine of up to $500.00 and each day any violation of 

the Orders in this Ordinance shall continue shall constitute a separate offense. 
 

Section 6.  Severability.  If any subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this 
Ordinance or any application of it to any person, structure, gathering, or circumstance is 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, 

then such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of 
this Ordinance.  This Ordinance approves and ratifies all actions taken in response to 

COVID-19 prior to its adoption. 



 

 
Section 7.  Continuation, Publication and Effective Date.  The emergency powers 

herein provided shall be exercised only to the extent made necessary by the nature of the 
emergency and during the continuation of the state of emergency.  This ordinance shall 

be published in accordance with the City’s Code of Ordinances; however, it shall become 
effective immediately at 10:59 p.m. on April 2, 2020.    
 

 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH 

THIS 2nd DAY OF APRIL 2020. 
 
       APPROVED: 

 
             

       ________________________________ 
       Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
       

ATTEST: 
 

_________________________________ 
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

______________________________ 
Patricia A. Adams, City Attorney 
 

  



 

Exhibit “D” 
Social Distancing Practices 

 
1) Vulnerable Populations: Limit Outings 

• Vulnerable populations include people who are: 
o 60 years old and older. 
o People with certain health conditions such as heart disease, lung 

disease, diabetes, kidney disease and weakened immune 
systems. 

• For vulnerable populations, don’t go to gatherings (of 10 people or more) 
unless it is essential. If you can telecommute, you should. Avoid people 
who are sick. 

 
2) Workplace and Businesses: Minimize Exposure 

• Suspend nonessential employee travel. 
• Minimize the number of employees working within arm’s length of one another, 

including minimizing or canceling large in-person meetings and conferences. 

• Urge employees to stay home when they are sick and maximize flexibility in 
sick leave benefits. 

• Do not require a doctor’s note for employees who are sick. 
• Consider use of telecommuting options. 
• Some people need to be at work to provide essential services of great 

benefit to the community. They can take steps in their workplace to 
minimize risk. 

 
3) Large Gatherings: Cancel Non-Essential Events 

• Recommend cancelling or postponing large gatherings, such as 

concerts, sporting events, conventions or large community events. 
• Do not attend any events or gatherings if sick. 

• For events that aren’t cancelled, we recommend: 
o Having hand washing capabilities, hand sanitizers and tissues available. 
o Frequently cleaning high touch surface areas like counter tops and hand 

rails. 
o Finding ways to create physical space to minimize close contact as 

much as possible. 
 
4) Schools: Safety First 

• Do not have your child attend school if sick. 
• If you have a child with chronic health conditions, consult the child’s doctor 

about school attendance. 
• Schools should equip all classrooms with hand sanitizers and tissues. 
• Recommend rescheduling or cancelling medium to large events that are not 

essential. 
• Explore remote teaching and online options to continue learning. 

• Schools should develop a plan for citywide school closures, and families 
should prepare for potential closures. 



 

 

 
5) Transit: Cleaning and Protection 

• Increase cleaning of vehicles and high touch surface areas. 
• Provide hand washing/hand sanitizers and tissues in stations and on vehicles. 

6) Health Care Settings: Avoid as possible, protect the vulnerable 
• Long term care facilities should have a COVID-19 plan in accordance with CDC 

or state guidelines. 

• Long term care facilities should screen all staff and visitors for illness and 
turn away those with symptoms. 

• The general public should avoid going to medical settings such as hospitals, 
nursing homes and long-term care facilities, even if you are not ill. 

• If you are ill, call your health care provider ahead of time, and you may be 

able to be served by phone. 
• Do not visit emergency rooms unless it is essential. 

• Visitors should not go to long-term care facilities unless absolutely essential. 
• Follow guidance and directions of all facilities. 

 

7) Everyone: Do your part 
The best way for all Corinth residents to reduce their risk of getting sick, as with seasonal 

colds or the flu, still applies to prevent COVID-19: 
• Wash hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds. 
• Cough or sneeze into your elbow or a tissue. Throw the tissue in the trash. 

• Stay home if you are sick. 
• Avoid touching your face. 

• Try alternatives to shaking hands, like an elbow bump or wave. 
• If you have recently returned from a country, state or region with ongoing 

COVID-19 infections, monitor your health and follow the instructions of public 

health officials and CDC guidance. 
• There is no recommendation to wear masks at this time to prevent yourself from 

getting sick. 
 
You can also prepare for the possible disruption caused by an outbreak. 

Preparedness actions include: 
• Prepare to work from home if that is possible for your job, and your employer. 

• Make sure you have a supply of all essential medications for your family. 
• Prepare a child care plan if you or a caregiver are sick. 
• Make arrangements about how your family will manage a school closure. 

• Plan for how you can care for a sick family member without getting sick yourself. 
• Take care of each other and check in by phone with friends, family and 

neighbors that are vulnerable to serious illness or death if they get COVID-19. 
• Keep common spaces clean to help maintain a healthy environment for you and 

others. Frequently touched surfaces should be cleaned regularly with disinfecting 

sprays, wipes or common household cleaning products. 
 

 


	Agenda
	AI 1830 Noise standard amendments
	AI 1827 February 20, 2020 Workshop Session
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI 1828 February 20, 2020 Regular Session
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI 1832 Enterprise Rental Car
	       ATT_PD Ordinance
	       ATT_Non-conforming release affidavit
	       ATT_Enterprise Mailed Notice
	       ATT_Enterprise Zoning Notification Area
	       ATT_Letter of Support
	AI 1831 Comprehensive plan update
	AI 1829 May 2, 2020 General Election
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 1836 May 2, 2020 Special Election - Short Term Motor Vehicle Tax
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 1835 May 2, 2020 Special Election - Fire District Tax
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 1833 Mayor's Declaration 
	       ATT_Declaration Ordinance

